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CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL 

Mayor Warner called the meeting of February 9, 2016 to order at 7:39 pm. The following 
members answered roll call: Mr. Gallagher, Mr. Brewer, Ms. Lawrence, Ms. Wolfe and 
Mayor Warner. Mr. Burke and Ms. Gigliello were absent. 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES - JANUARY 26, 2016 

With no changes or corrections to the meeting minutes of January 26, 2016, Mayor Warner 
declared they would stand approved as submitted.  

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Mr. Holman stated there were two changes to the agenda: remove the Motion to Change 
the First Meeting in April (under New Business) to the February 23rd meeting; and add an 
executive session at the end of the meeting. 

 
COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL 

A. Citizen's Comment - (Non-Agenda Items ONLY: 3-minute limit please) 
Mayor Warner opened Citizen's Comment.  

Mr. Gabriel Franklin, owner of The Rabbit Hole Medicial Marijuana Dispensary, stated he 
was present to ask Council to amend the current marijuana moratorium ordinance to allow 
him to convert his medical license to a recreational sales license instead. He further stated 
he has no cultivation license or cultivation facility in Breckenridge. Mayor Warner stated 
there was a request in the past to make changes to this ordinance, and Council chose to 
continue the moratorium until July 1, 2016. Mayor Warner also stated this council will 
change in April, and we don't know what will happen then. Ms. Wolfe and other Council 
members asked about the number of licenses we have in the community. Ms. Cospolich 
stated we have five licensees with many licenses between them. Mr. Franklin stated he only 
has a medical store license and not a grow. Mr. Brewer stated he doesn't believe it was the 
intent of the moratorium to limit licenses from current licensees. Mr. Holman stated he 
would suggest Council speak with staff regarding information relative the situation. Mayor 
Warner stated Council is willing to direct staff and listen to the public and Council 
will entertain this idea at the next meeting. 

Ms. Tricia Hyon, a proponent of a winter sports training facility, stated there are three 
proposals for the expansion of the Recreation Center, and she believes it would be good to 
have an outside consultant available to work on the winter sports training facility proposal. 
She further asked if Council might consider a consultant for this project. Mayor Warner 
stated the timing of this project is up in the air with the departure of Mr. Mike Barney, 
and Mr. Holman stated last week staff selected a recreational consulting team for the 
Recreation Center redesign, and is looking at how this might work internally. He further 
stated it's staff's job to coordinate the project and to bring it back to the Council, and the 
outreach component will look at community input, and what will be involved to cover 
more tennis courts and see if this kind of facility is feasible. Mr. Holman also stated he 
feels comfortable about the process and will stay engaged with community groups. Ms. 
Hyon then asked about who would be their point of contact moving forward, and Mr. 
Holman stated recreational staff will work with the winter sports training group. Ms. Wolfe 
stated she would like to suggest this dialogue take place with the recreation advisory group 
as well, and Mr. Holman stated there are a lot of demands, and we have a lot of projects. 
Mayor Warner added Council is prioritizing many different things, and is committed to 
listening to see how it fits into the scope. Ms. Hyon stated the group is happy to help with 
the process.  

There were no additional comments and Citizen's Comment was closed. 
 

B. Breckenridge Tourism Office Update 
Ms. Sandy Metzger, of the BTO, stated they are teaming up with Main Street Station to 
animate the south side of town for events. She further stated the Ullr Ice Plunge in Maggie 
Pond was a success, as well as a snow sculpting tour with a Fairplay school. Also, she 
stated the Snow Sculpture championships filled the volunteer teams, hosted a concert 
during carving week, added a new sponsor this year (Toyota), and expanded the footprint 
to ease the crowds. She stated the addition of boot dryers and shovelers helped improve 
experience for the sculptors. Ms. Lucy Kay, Director of the BTO, stated they have received 
over 300 million impressions from traditional media for the Snow Sculpture event. She 
added the BTO has restructured to create a new guest and business services division. She 
also stated there is softness in the lodging trend, and coming out of the downturn, the travel 
industry came back, and now international travel is dropping a little.  
 

C. Breckenridge Ski Resort Update 
Mr. Gary Shimanowitz, of Breckenridge Ski Resort, stated Spring Fever takes place March 
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18-April 17, and will feature several big bands. He also stated there will be a Big Air 
Competition that will take place on March 19, called Orbital Flight presented by Red Bull, 
and will feature video and light components with top athletes and a top musical act. Mr. 
Shimanowitz also offered clarification on the closing date of the resort, which will now be 
April 24 with a limited Peak 8 package the final week. He stated Epic Promise awarded 
Summit County Search and Rescue with $28,000, and he congratulated the Town on Snow 
Sculpture, and stated Vail Resorts was proud to be the snow provider for that event. He 
also stated the State of the Town event was positive and keeping the gondola open until 
6pm some days has been successful. 

 
CONTINUED BUSINESS 

A. Second Reading of Council Bills, Series 2016 - Public Hearings 
1. COUNCIL BILL NO. 2, SERIES 2016 - AN ORDINANCE DESIGNATING CERTAIN 

REAL PROPERTY AS A LANDMARK UNDER CHAPTER 11 OF TITLE 9 OF THE 
BRECKENRIDGE TOWN CODE (Lot 7, Block 7, Yingling and Mickles Subdivision) 
Mayor Warner read the title into the minutes. Mr. Tim Berry stated there were no changes 
to this ordinance from the first reading.  

Mayor Warner opened the public hearing on second reading. There were no comments and 
the hearing was closed.  
 
Mr. Gallagher moved to approve COUNCIL BILL NO. 2, SERIES 2016 - AN 
ORDINANCE DESIGNATING CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY AS A LANDMARK 
UNDER CHAPTER 11 OF TITLE 9 OF THE BRECKENRIDGE TOWN CODE (Lot 7, 
Block 7, Yingling and Mickles Subdivision). Ms. Wolfe seconded the motion. 
The motion passed 5 - 0. Mr. Burke and Ms. Gigliello were absent. 
 

2. COUNCIL BILL NO. 3, SERIES 2016 - AN ORDINANCE DESIGNATING CERTAIN 
REAL PROPERTY AS A LANDMARK UNDER CHAPTER 11 OF TITLE 9 OF THE 
BRECKENRIDGE TOWN CODE (Lot 8A, Block 7, Yingling and Mickles Subdivision) 
Mayor Warner read the title into the minutes. Mr. Tim Berry stated there were no changes 
to this ordinance from the first reading.  

Mayor Warner opened the public hearing on second reading. There were no comments and 
the hearing was closed.  
 
Ms. Lawrence moved to approve COUNCIL BILL NO. 3, SERIES 2016 - AN 
ORDINANCE DESIGNATING CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY AS A LANDMARK 
UNDER CHAPTER 11 OF TITLE 9 OF THE BRECKENRIDGE TOWN CODE (Lot 8A, 
Block 7, Yingling and Mickles Subdivision). Ms. Wolfe seconded the motion. 
The motion passed 5 - 0. Mr. Burke and Ms. Gigliello were absent. 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. First Reading of Council Bills, Series 2016 - Public Hearings 
B. Resolutions, Series 2016 

1. RESOLUTION NO. 5, SERIES 2016 - A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE TOWN 
COUNCIL “PROCEDURES AND RULES OF ORDER” CONCERNING THE DATE OF 
THE ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING OF A NEWLY ELECTED TOWN COUNCIL 
Mayor Warner read the title into the minutes. Mr. Tim Berry stated the Charter requires the 
Town to adopt rules to govern Council meetings, and the rules allow for the organizational 
meeting of the Council to occur at the first meeting after the Municipal Election. A change 
in Statute requires the election can't be certified until more than 8 days after the election. 
This resolution would give Council the flexibility to set a new meeting date in April after 
the election to serve as the organizational meeting of the Council. 
 
Mr. Brewer moved to approve RESOLUTION NO. 5, SERIES 2016 - A RESOLUTION 
AMENDING THE TOWN COUNCIL “PROCEDURES AND RULES OF ORDER” 
CONCERNING THE DATE OF THE ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING OF A NEWLY 
ELECTED TOWN COUNCIL. Ms. Wolfe seconded the motion. 
The motion passed 5 - 0. Mr. Burke and Ms. Gigliello were absent. 
 

C. Other 

 
PLANNING MATTERS 

A. Planning Commission Decisions 
With no request to call an item off the consent calendar, Mayor Warner declared the 
Planning Commission Decisions would stand approved as presented.  
 

B. Planning Commission Report (Ms. Wolfe) 
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Ms. Wolfe stated she had no update from the notes of the meeting. 
 
REPORT OF TOWN MANAGER AND STAFF 

Mr. Holman stated there will be two candidate forums in March hosted by the BTO and the 
Summit Association of Realtors.  

 
REPORT OF MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 

A. Cast/MMC (Mayor Warner) 
Mayor Warner stated Council already discussed these items in the Work Session. 
 

B. Breckenridge Open Space Advisory Committee (Ms. Gigliello) 
Ms. Gigliello was not present for a report. 
 

C. Breckenridge Tourism Office (Ms. Wolfe) 
Ms. Wolfe stated she had no report. 
 

D. Breckenridge Heritage Alliance (Ms. Lawrence) 
Ms. Lawrence stated, regarding the Wentzell Cabin, the Town has the opportunity to 
move an historic cabin off Forest Service land, and the Town could move this cabin next to 
the Carter Museum to be used as bathrooms. She stated the cost is a consideration in order 
to supplement the BHA budget, as well as the timing of this project in September. Ms. 
Lawrence added Robin Theobald has offered to facilitate the conversation with the 
Wentzells. Mayor Warner stated there are a lot of questions, and it would be a good reuse 
of the cabin. Mr. Grosshuesch stated it might be placed on a different lot from the museum. 
Mr. Brewer stated he thinks it's a good idea, and he likes the bathrooms that were done on 
the Arts District property. Ms. Wolfe agreed that she likes the Arts District bathrooms, and 
would like to take the next steps on this project. Mr. Gallagher stated he likes the idea. Mr. 
Holman stated staff has already spoken about this project, and the plan is to continue to 
investigate and use Mr. Theobald's help and then come back to Council and present the 
cost and the timeline for this project. Mr. Brewer stated this would achieve something very 
unique. 
 

E. Water Task Force (Mr. Gallagher) 
Mr. Gallagher stated there was no report. 
 

F. Cultural Arts Advisory Committee (Mr. Burke) 
Mr. Burke was not present for a report. 

 
OTHER MATTERS 

Mr. Brewer asked about the Breckenridge Bucks jersey that was to be framed and possibly 
placed in Council Chambers. Ms. Kim Dykstra stated she believes it was hung at the Ice 
Arena and will check. Mayor Warner stated he attended one of the Bucks games and 
enjoyed it.  

Ms. Lawrence stated Mr. Tony Wilson, a citizen, contacted her about the Bull of the 
Woods event to state he loves it and would like Council to encourage it to come back. She 
further stated she has heard positive feedback about the event.  

 
SCHEDULED MEETINGS 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

With no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 9:18 pm. Submitted by Helen 
Cospolich, Municipal Services Manager. 

 
 
ATTEST:       
 
                  ________________________________ 
Helen Cospolich, Town Clerk                     John Warner, Mayor 
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                TO:   BRECKENRIDGE TOWN COUNCIL 

FROM: BRIAN WALDES, FINANCIAL SERVICES MANAGER 

SUBJECT: LIFT TICKET TAX ORDINANCE 

DATE: 2-17-16 

CC: RICK HOLMAN, TOWN MANAGER 

The purpose of this memo is to outline the main points of the Lift Ticket Tax Ordinance (the 
ordinance). 

In November of 2015 the Breckenridge citizenry approved a ballot measure establishing a 4.5% 
excise tax on the price of lift tickets sold for lift access in Breckenridge.  Attached is the ordinance 
that will codify this tax. 

The ordinance provides for the administration and collection of this tax in a method very similar 
to our extant excise taxes, i.e. sales and accommodations taxes.  As Council is aware, the Town has 
an agreement with Vail Summit Resorts International (VSRI), regarding minimum annual tax revenue 
amounts to be remitted to the Town.  Staff will meet with VSRI personnel to formulate and execute 
an agreement that will establish the collection methods and timing for remittance of the lift tax.  Staff 
kept the specific provisions of the collection arrangement out of the ordinance in order to facilitate 
any potential minor changes to the agreement in the future.  If the ordinance was specific to the 
terms of the agreement, then any minor changes would require legislative action and the attendant 2 
readings and subsequent waiting period. 

Staff will keep Council apprised of progress with VSRI on crafting the specific remittance 
agreement.  We anticipate meeting with VSRI soon in this regard, although no specific meeting date 
has been set. Per our agreement, we are to confer with Vail when drafting this ordinance. We have 
submitted the ordinance to VSRI and have yet to hear back.  As such, they may have some 
suggestions that could potentially be incorporated at second reading, if Council so elects. 
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DRAFT February 12, 2016 DRAFT 1 
 2 

Additions To The Current Breckenridge Town Code Are 3 
Indicated By Bold + Double Underline; Deletions By Strikeout 4 

 5 
COUNCIL BILL NO. ___ 6 

 7 
Series 2016 8 

 9 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 3 OF THE BRECKENRIDGE TOWN 10 

CODE, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2016, BY ADOPTING AN EXCISE LIFT 11 
TICKET TAX OF 4.5 % ON THE PRICE PAID FOR SINGLE AND MULTI-12 
DAY SKI LIFT TICKETS PURCHASED FOR USE ONLY AT A LOCAL SKI 13 

AREA;PROVIDING THE DETAILS OF THE COLLECTIONAND 14 
ADMINISTRATION OF SUCH TAX; CREATING A PARKING AND 15 

TRANSPORTATION FUND; AND REQUIRING REVENUES COLLECTED 16 
FROM THE NEW LIFT TICKET TAX TO BE USED ONLY FOR 17 

DESIGNATED PURPOSES 18 
 19 

 WHEREAS, the Town of Breckenridge (“Town”) is a home rule municipal corporation 20 
organized and existing under Article XX of the Colorado Constitution; and 21 
  22 
 WHEREAS, Section 12.1 of the Breckenridge Town Charter provides that the Town 23 
Council of the Town (“Town Council”) may, by ordinance, levy and collect excise taxes for 24 
municipal purposes; and 25 
  26 
 WHEREAS, at a special election held November 5, 2015 the Town Council submitted a 27 
ballot question to the registered electors of the Town, the submission clause of which read: 28 
 29 

SHALL TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE TAXES BE INCREASED $4,000,000 30 
ANNUALLY COMMENCING JULY 1, 2016, AND BY SUCH AMOUNTS AS 31 
ARE RAISED ANNUALLY THEREAFTER, BY IMPOSING AN 32 
ADMISSIONS EXCISE TAX OF 4.5% OF THE PRICE PAID FOR EACH LIFT 33 
TICKET PURCHASED, WITHIN THE TOWN OR ELSEWHERE, TO 34 
OBTAIN THE RIGHT OF ENTRY SOLELY TO A SKI AREA WHICH HAS 35 
ONE OR MORE SKI LIFTS LOCATED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHIN 36 
THE TOWN, FOR USE DURING THE ANNUAL PERIOD BETWEEN 37 
NOVEMBER 1 AND APRIL 30, PROVIDED THAT THE ADMISSIONS 38 
EXCISE TAX SHALL NOT APPLY TO (1) ANY SEASON PASS ALLOWING 39 
RIGHT OF ENTRY TO A SKI AREA FOR A MAJORITY OF THE SEASON 40 
OR (2) ANY LIFT TICKET WHICH PROVIDES THE RIGHT OF ENTRY TO 41 
ONE OR MORE SKI AREAS LOCATED OUTSIDE THE TOWN AS WELL 42 
AS  A SKI AREA LOCATED WHOLLY OR PARTIALLY WITHIN THE 43 
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TOWN, AND REQUIRING EVERY SKI AREA OPERATOR TO COLLECT 1 
SUCH ADMISSIONS TAX FOR THE TOWN; AND SHALL ALL OF THE 2 
ADMISSION EXCISE TAX REVENUES COLLECTED BY THE TOWN BE 3 
PAID INTO A SPECIAL FUND OF THE TOWN AND USED ONLY TO PAY 4 
FOR OR REIMBURSE THE TOWN FOR: (1) THE DIRECT AND INDIRECT 5 
COSTS OF OPERATING THE TOWN’S TRANSIT SYSTEM, INCLUDING, 6 
WITHOUT LIMITATION, LABOR, ROLLING STOCK, AND OTHER COSTS 7 
ASSOCIATED THEREWITH;  (2) THE DIRECT AND INDIRECT COSTS OF 8 
PROVIDING PUBLIC PARKING WITHIN THE TOWN, INCLUDING, 9 
WITHOUT LIMITATION, LAND ACQUISITION COSTS, CONSTRUCTION, 10 
AND MAINTENANCE; AND (3) OTHER DIRECT AND INDIRECT COSTS 11 
INCURRED BY THE TOWN IN ENHANCING THE MOVEMENT OF 12 
PERSONS AND VEHICLES WITHIN THE TOWN, INCLUDING, WITHOUT 13 
LIMITATION, THE COST OF CONSTRUCTING AND MAINTAINING 14 
CROSSWALKS AND ROUNDABOUTS, AND SHALL THE TOWN 15 
COUNCIL BE AUTHORIZED TO PROVIDE BY ORDINANCE OTHER 16 
MATTERS NECESSARY TO THE IMPLEMENTATION, COLLECTION, 17 
AND ENFORCEMENT OF SUCH TAX? 18 

 19 
; and 20 
 21 
 WHEREAS, the ballot question set forth above was approved by the registered electors 22 
of the Town by a vote of 1100 in favor and 223 opposed; and 23 
 24 
 WHEREAS, it is necessary and appropriate for the Town Council to adopt an ordinance 25 
implementing the ballot question that was approved by the electors of the Town at the November 26 
5, 2015 special election; and 27 
 28 
 WHEREAS, all conditions precedent to the adoption of this ordinance have been 29 
satisfied. 30 
 31 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 32 
BRECKENRIDGE, COLORADO: 33 
 34 

Section 1.  Title 3 of the Breckenridge Town Code is amended by the addition of a 35 
new Chapter 10, entitled “Lift Ticket Tax,” which shall read in its entirety as follows: 36 

CHAPTER 10 37 
 38 
 LIFT TICKET TAX 39 

 40 
SECTION: 41 
 42 
3-10-1:  Purpose 43 
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3-10-2:  Definitions 1 
3-10-3:  Imposition of Tax 2 
3-10-4:  Tax Revenues To Be Deposited Into Parking and Transportation Fund 3 
3-10-5:  Exemptions 4 
3-10-6:  Collection of Tax BySki Area Operator 5 
3-10-7:  Remittance of Collected Tax 6 
3-10-8:  Preservation of Returns and Other Records; Confidentiality 7 
3-10-9:  Records and Accounts To Be Kept 8 
3-10-10:  Examination of Returns; Recomputations, Credits, and Deficiencies 9 
3-10-11:  Investigation of Records Related to Taxes; Hearings 10 
3-10-12:  Subpoenas and Witness Fees 11 
3-10-13:  Attendance of Witness and Production of Evidence 12 
3-10-14:  Depositions 13 
3-10-15:  Audit of Records 14 
3-10-16:  Failure to Make Return; Estimate of Taxes; Notices; Appeal 15 
3-10-17:  Procedure For Refund of Tax Paid 16 
3-10-18:  Duties of Tax Enforcement Officer 17 
3-10-19:  Rate of Interest; Method of Calculation 18 
3-10-20:  Recovery of Unpaid Tax by Action at Law 19 
3-10-21:  Injunctive Relief 20 
3-10-22:  Waiver of Penalties, Interest, and Fees 21 
3-10-23:  Authority to Compromise Taxes 22 
3-10-24:  Review of Decision of Financial Services Manager 23 
3-10-25:  Review Bond Required 24 
3-10-26:  Notices 25 
3-10-27:  Tax in Addition to All Other Taxes 26 
3-10-28:  Administration By Financial Services Manager; Rules and Regulations 27 
3-10-29:  Limitations on Actions to Collect 28 
3-10-30:  Violations; Penalties 29 
3-10-31:  Amendments 30 
 31 
3-10-1:  PURPOSE: The purpose of this Chapter is to impose an excise tax of four and one-32 
half percent (4.5%) on the price paid for each single and multi-day ski lift ticket purchased 33 
either within the Town or elsewhere only for use at a ski area which has one or more ski 34 
lifts located in whole or in part within the Town. Admission to such a ski area pursuant to 35 
such a single or multi-day ski lift ticket is a taxable privilege. It is the further purpose of 36 
this Chapter to require a ski area operatorto collect such ski lift tax for the Town, all as 37 
provided in this Chapter.  38 

3-10-2:  DEFINITIONS:  39 

A. The following words and phrases, when used in this Chapter, shall have the 40 
following meanings:  41 
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DESIGNATED REVENUES: All revenues collected by the Town pursuant to this 
Chapter. 

FINANCIAL SERVICES 
MANAGER: 

The Financial Services Manager of the Town, or 
such person’s authorized representative. 

LIFT TICKET: Any certificate, card, slip, token, badge, patch, pass, 
or other document or electronic or digital file or 
record of any kind, that entitles the owner or 
possessorthereof to ski at a local ski area.  

LOCAL SKI AREA: A ski area which has one or more ski lifts located in 
whole or in part within the Town. 
 

PARKING AND 
TRANSPORTATION FUND:  

The Town of Breckenridge Parking and 
Transportation Fund described in Section 3-11-2 of 
this Code. 
 

RECORDS: Any books, accounts, papers, memoranda, or other 
records of a Ski Area Operator, regardless of their 
form or format, that is or may be relevant to 
determining the amount of the tax due from such Ski 
Area Operator. 
 

SEASON PASS: All lift ticket products that provide access to a local 
ski area for the majority of the ski season. 

SKI AREA: All ski slopes or trails and other places under the 
control of a ski area operator and administered as a 
single enterprise. The term “ski slopes and trails” 
means those areas designated by the ski area 
operator to be used by skiers for the purpose of 
sliding downhill on snow or ice on skis, a snowboard, 
or any other device. 
 

SKI AREA OPERATOR: Any business entity having operational responsibility 
from time to time for a local ski area. 

TAX: The tax payable to the Town pursuant to this 
Chapter.  

TAXABLE LIFT TICKET: A single or multi-day ski lift ticket purchased for use 
only at a local ski area during the annual period 
between November 1 and the following April 30. 

 1 
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B. Terms not defined in this Chapter shall be given their common meaning.  1 

3-10-3:  IMPOSITION OF TAX: 2 
 3 

A. On and after 12:01 a.m., July 1, 2016 there is levied and there shall be collected 4 
and paid by each Ski Area Operator an excise tax as described in this Chapter. Such tax is 5 
due and shall be paid for the exercise of a taxable privilege.  6 

B. The amount of the tax hereby levied is four and one-half percent (4.5%) of the 7 
price of each taxable lift ticket, whether purchased within the Town or elsewhere; provided 8 
that a tax derived from calculations resulting in a fraction of a cent being a part of the tax 9 
shall be increased or rounded to the next whole cent.  10 

C. If a block of taxable lift ticketsis sold to a single purchaser at a bulk rate, the tax 11 
shall be computed on the bulk rate in such case instead of on each taxable lift ticket, 12 
provided that none of the taxable lift tickets in the block are resold.  13 

3-10-4: TAX REVENUES TO BE DEPOSITED INTO PARKING AND 14 
TRANSPORTATION FUND: Immediately upon receipt or collection, the designated 15 
revenuesshall be credited to the Parking and Transportation Fund and used as provided in 16 
Section 3-11-3 of this Code. 17 

3-10-5:  EXEMPTIONS:  18 

A. The tax imposed by this Chapter does not apply to: 19 

1. Seasons passes; 20 

2. Any lift ticket not specifically sold to provide the right of entry solely to alocal 21 
ski area (including, by way of example, any lift ticket which provides the right of 22 
entry to one or more ski areas located outside of the Town as well as a local ski 23 
area); 24 

3. Any passes or lift tickets sold for summer activities; or  25 

4. Any other items or activities besides those lift tickets intended for ski lift use 26 
solely at a local ski area between November 1 and the following April 30.  27 

B. The burden of proving that any transaction is not subject to the tax implemented 28 
by this Chapter shall be upon the Ski Area Operator.  29 

3-10-6:  COLLECTION OF TAX BYSKI AREA OPERATOR: 30 

A. EachSki Area Operatorshall beliable for the collection and remittance of the tax 31 
as provided in this Chapter. 32 
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B. The tax shall be added to and shall constitute a part of the purchase price, 1 
charge, or other consideration paid for the taxable privilege of admission to a local ski 2 
areaarising from the purchase of a taxable lift ticket. The tax shall be separately stated on 3 
ataxable lift ticketat the time of the sale of the taxable lift ticket. The purchaser of a taxable 4 
lift ticketshall pay the tax to theSki Area Operator as collection agent for and on account of 5 
the Town, and the Ski Area Operatorshall be liable for the collection therefor and on 6 
account of the Town.  7 

C. A credit shall be allowed against the amount due to the Town under this Chapter 8 
for any tax that would be due for an unused single day taxable lift ticket, or any unused 9 
portion of a multi-day taxable lift ticket, the purchase price of which has been refunded by 10 
the Ski Area Operator to the purchaser of the taxable lift ticket .  11 

3-10-7:  REMITTANCE OF COLLECTED TAX:  12 

A. Every Ski Area Operator or other taxpayer subject to the payment of the tax imposed 13 
by this Chapter shall be liable and responsible for the payment of an amount equivalent to four 14 
and one-half percent (4.5%) of the price paid by a purchaser for each taxable lift ticket as 15 
provided in Section 3-10-3 of this Chapter, and shall file a return each month with the Financial 16 
Services Manager on or before the twentieth day of each month for the preceding month and 17 
remit to the Financial Services Manager an amount equivalent to said four and one-half percent 18 
(4.5%) of the price paid by a purchaser for each taxable lift ticket. 19 

B.  The monthlytax return and tax remitted to the Financial Services Manager shall 20 
be made in such manner and upon such forms as the Financial Services Manager may 21 
prescribe.  22 

C. If the accounting methods employed by a Ski Area Operator or other taxpayer subject 23 
to the payment of the tax imposed by this Chapter are such that returns made on the calendar 24 
month basis will impose unnecessary hardship, the Financial Services Manager may, upon 25 
request of the Ski Area or other taxpayer, accept returns at such intervals as will, in the opinion 26 
of the Financial Services Manager, better suit the convenience of the Ski Area Operator or other 27 
taxpayer and will not jeopardize the collection of the tax. If any Ski Area Operator or other 28 
taxpayer who has been granted permission to file reports and pay tax on other than a monthly 29 
basis shall become delinquent, then authorization for such alternative method of reporting may 30 
be revoked by the Financial Services Manager or his or her authorized agent, and immediately 31 
following notice of revocation, the Ski Area Operator or other taxpayer will be required to file 32 
reports and pay tax, interest, and penalties on a monthly basis for all unreported or unpaid tax in 33 
the same manner required by law under conditions that would prevail if he has never been 34 
granted the alternate method of reporting and paying the tax. 35 

3-10-8: PRESERVATION OF RETURNS AND OTHER RECORDS; 36 
CONFIDENTIALITY:  37 
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A. Returns filed pursuant to this Chapter shall be preserved for a period of three (3) 1 
years from the date of filing with the Financial Services Manager, after which time the 2 
Financial Services Manager may order them destroyed.  3 

B. Chapter 7 of this Title, concerning confidentiality of tax returns and information, 4 
applies to tax returns and information provided to the Town pursuant to this Chapter; 5 
provided, however, that the total amount of tax paid to the Town by a Ski Area Operator 6 
shall not be confidential information and may be disclosed to the public.  7 

3-10-9: RECORDS AND ACCOUNTS TO BE KEPT:  EachSki Area Operatorshall keep 8 
and preserve suitable records of all sales of taxable lift tickets sold, and such other books or 9 
accounts as may be necessary to determine the amount of tax for the collection or payment 10 
of which the Ski Area Operatoris liable hereunder. It is the duty of eachSki Area 11 
Operatorto keep and preserve all such books, invoices, and other records for a period of 12 
three (3) years following the date the taxes were due to the Town. Such items shall be open 13 
for investigation by the Financial Services Manager in accordance with Section 3-10-11. If 14 
aSki Area Operator has filed a tax return for any period after the due date for that period, 15 
then the records for the period shall be preserved for three (3) years after the date the 16 
return was filed. If aSki Area Operator has not filed a tax return for any period, then the 17 
records must be preserved indefinitely by the Ski Area Operator.  18 

3-10-10:  EXAMINATION OF RETURNS; RECOMPUTATION; CREDITS; AND 19 
DEFICIENCIES:  As soon as practicable after a return is filed, the Financial Services 20 
Manager shall examine it. If it appears that the correct amount of tax to be remitted may 21 
be greater or less than that shown in the return, the tax shall be recomputed by the 22 
Financial Services Manager. If the amount paid exceeds that which is due, the excess shall 23 
be refunded or credited against any subsequent remittance from the Ski Area Operator. If 24 
the amount paid is less than the amount due, the amount of the deficiency with a penalty of 25 
ten percent (10%) of the amount of the deficiency plus interest on both the deficiency and 26 
the penalty shall be due and payable in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 27 
3-10-16.  28 

3-10-11: INVESTIGATION OF RECORDS RELATING TO TAXES; HEARINGS: 29 

A. For the purpose of ascertaining the correctness of a return, or for the purpose of 30 
determining the amount of tax due from aSki Area Operator under this Chapter, the 31 
Financial Services Manager may hold investigations, including audits and hearings, 32 
concerning any matters covered by this Chapter, and may examine any record of the Ski 33 
Area Operator, or any officer or employee thereof, or of any person having knowledge of 34 
the transactions involved, and may take testimony and evidence as proof of the 35 
information. The Financial Services Manager shall have the power to administer oaths to 36 
such persons.  37 

B. The Financial Services Manager may schedule a hearing, notifying the affected 38 
Ski Area Operator in the manner provided in Section 3-10-26at least thirty (30) days prior 39 
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to the date of the hearing. The Financial Services Manager is authorized to issue subpoenas 1 
pursuant to Section 3-10-12. Such hearing shall be informal and no transcript, rule of 2 
evidence, or filing of briefs shall be required. However,the Ski Area Operatormay elect to 3 
submit a brief, in which case the Town may submit a brief. The Financial Services 4 
Manager shall hold such hearing and issue a final decision thereon within ninety (90) days 5 
after the Town’s notification to the Ski Area Operator, except the Financial Services 6 
Manager may extend such period if the delay in holding the hearing or issuing the decision 7 
thereon was occasioned by the Ski Area Operator but, in any event, the Financial Services 8 
Manager shall hold such hearing within one hundred eighty (180) days of notifying the Ski 9 
Area Operator of the hearing. The decision shall be mailed by regular mail to the Ski Area 10 
Operator. If the Ski Area Operator has exhausted Town remedies, the Ski Area Operator 11 
may dispute the decision of the Financial Services Manager in the Summit County District 12 
Court pursuant to Section 3-10-24.  13 

C. Every hearing before the Financial Services Manager shall be held at a location 14 
designated by the Financial Services Manager or other hearing officer.  15 

3-10-12:  SUBPOENAS AND WITNESS FEES:  All subpoenas issued under the terms of 16 
this Chapter may be served by certified mail, return receipt requested, or by personal 17 
service made by any person over the age of eighteen (18) years. The fees of witnesses for 18 
attendance in response to a subpoena shall be the same as the fees of witnesses before the 19 
Summit County District Court, such fees to be paid when the witness is excused from 20 
further attendance. When the witness is subpoenaed at the instance of the Financial 21 
Services Manager, such fees shall be paid by the Town. When a witness is subpoenaed at 22 
the instance of any other party to such proceeding, the Financial Services Manager may 23 
require that the cost of service of the subpoena and the fee of the witness be borne by the 24 
party at whose instance the witness is summoned. In such case, the Financial Services 25 
Manager, in his or her discretion, may require a deposit to cover the cost of such service 26 
and witness fees prior to issuing such subpoenas. 27 

3-10-13:  ATTENDANCE OF WITNESS AND PRODUCTION OF EVIDENCE: Any 28 
judge of the Summit County District Court or the Municipal Court, upon the application of 29 
the Financial Services Manager or other party to an investigation or hearing by the 30 
Financial Services Manager, may compel the attendance of witnesses, the production of 31 
books, papers, records, or memoranda, and the giving of testimony before the Financial 32 
Services Manager, by an action for contempt or otherwise in the same manner as though 33 
the production of evidence were before such court.  34 

3-10-14:  DEPOSITIONS:  The Financial Services Manager, or any party to an 35 
investigation or hearing before the Financial Services Manager, may cause the deposition 36 
of witnesses residing within or without the State to be taken in the manner prescribed by 37 
law for depositions in civil actions in courts of this State.  To that end, the Financial 38 
Services Manager may compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of books, 39 
papers, records, or memoranda.  40 
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3-10-15:  AUDIT OF RECORDS:  1 

A. For the purpose of ascertaining the correct amount of tax due from aSki Area 2 
Operatorpursuant to this Chapter, the Financial Services Manager may conduct or 3 
authorize an agent to conduct an audit by examining any records of the Ski Area Operator.  4 

B. All recordsof a Ski Area Operatorshall be open at any reasonable time for 5 
examination by the Financial Services Manager oran authorized agent of the Financial 6 
Services Manager. If a Ski Area Operator refuses to voluntarily furnish any of the 7 
foregoing information when requested by the Financial Services Manager or an authorized 8 
agent, the Financial Services Manager may issue a subpoena to require that the Ski Area 9 
Operator or its representative produce any such records for examination either at the 10 
hearing, orby producing such records without the necessity of a hearing at such other date 11 
as may be specified in the subpoena.  12 

C. Any tax deficiency or overpayment ascertained through audit shall be computed 13 
by one (1) or more of the following methods or any other method as the Financial 14 
ServicesManager deems appropriate:  15 

1. By identifying Lift Ticket Tax transactions on which the tax was not properly or 16 
accurately collected or paid.  17 

2. By identifying other irregularities in the calculation of tax due.  18 

3. By estimating taxes due based on the results of testing the Ski Area 19 
Operator’srecords on a statistical or other reasonable basis.  20 

D. The Financial Services Manager is authorized to audit a Ski Area Operator’s 21 
records for the thirty-six (36) calendar months preceding the month the Ski Area Operator 22 
is notified that an audit is to be conducted. The ability to audit this thirty-six (36) month 23 
period shall not lapse due to the passage of time once the Ski Area Operator has been 24 
notified of the audit period. If aSki Area Operator failed to file a return, the Financial 25 
Services Manager shall have the right to audit periods not filed for an indefinite period of 26 
time. If a return is filed late, the Financial Services Manager shall have the right to audit 27 
the late return for thirty-six (36) months following the month the return was filed.  28 

E. All records of a Ski Area Operator shall be made available to the Town within a 29 
fifty-mile radius of the Town. If the Ski Area Operator does not wish to make records 30 
available within this area, the Financial Services Manager may elect to assess the Ski Area 31 
Operator for all expenses associated with sending auditors to the location selected by the 32 
Ski Area Operator and for reasonable expenses, including food and lodging, incurred by 33 
the auditors during the period for the audit and until their return to the Town. Such 34 
liability shall become part of the final audit assessment and shall be treated as an unpaid 35 
tax due to the Town under this Chapter.  36 
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3-10-16: FAILURE TO MAKE RETURN; ESTIMATE OF TAXES; NOTICES; APPEAL:  1 

A. IfaSki Area Operator fails, neglects, or refuses to collect the tax or to file a return 2 
and pay the tax as required by this Chapter, or fails, neglects, or refuses to collect, report, 3 
or pay any portion of the tax, the Financial Services Manager shall make an estimate of the 4 
tax due based on available information and shall add thereto a penalty equal to ten percent 5 
(10%) of the tax due, and interest on such delinquent tax at the rate imposed by Section 3-6 
10-19, plus one-half of one percent (.5%) per month from the date the return and tax was 7 
due, which interest shall not exceed eighteen percent (18%) in the aggregate.  8 

B. The Financial Services Manager shall serve written notice upon the Ski Area 9 
Operator in the manner provided in Section 3-10-26assessing such estimated taxes, penalty, 10 
and interest. Such notice shall constitute a notice of determination, assessment, and 11 
demand for payment, and such assessment shall be due and payable from the Ski Area 12 
Operator to the Financial Services Manager within thirty (30) days from the date of 13 
personal service of the notice or the date of mailing; provided, however, that within the 14 
twenty-day period, the Ski Area Operator may appeal the notice of assessment as provided 15 
in Section C of this Section.  16 

C. An appeal of a notice of assessment issued to a Ski Area Operator for failure to 17 
file a return, underpayment of tax owed, or as a result of an audit, shall be submitted in 18 
writing to the Financial Services Manager within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of 19 
the notice of assessment. Any such appeal shall identify the amount of tax disputed and the 20 
basis for the appeal.  21 

D. An appeal of a notice of assessment may include a request for a hearing.  22 

E. If a hearing is requested as provided in this Section, the Financial Services 23 
Manager shall notify the appealing Ski Area Operator in writing of the time and place of 24 
the hearing. The hearing shall be held in accordance with the provisions of Section 3-10-11. 25 
After such hearing, or after a consideration of the facts and figures contained in the appeal 26 
if no hearing is requested, the Financial Services Manager shall make such order in the 27 
manner he or she deems just and proper and shall furnish a copy of such order to the 28 
appealing Ski Area Operator.  29 

F. An aggrieved party may appeal the decision of the Financial Services Manager 30 
made pursuant to this Section to the district court as provided in Section 3-10-24 31 

3-10-17:  PROCEDURE FOR REFUND OF TAX PAID:  32 

A. Any person who claims that a transaction was not taxable or claims an exemption 33 
as provided in this Chapter may apply for a refund of the tax paid.  34 
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B. An application for a refund of tax paid under dispute by a purchaser who claims 1 
an exemption shall be made within sixty (60) days after the date of purchase for which an 2 
exemption is claimed.  3 

C. An application for refund of taxes paid in error or by mistake by a Ski Area 4 
Operator shall be made within three (3) years after the date of transaction for which the 5 
refund is claimed.  6 

D. All applications for refund shall be made upon forms prescribed and furnished 7 
by the Financial Services Manager.  8 

E. The burden of proving that any transaction or item is not taxable or is exempt 9 
from the tax shall be upon the person asserting such claim under such reasonable 10 
requirements of proof as the Financial Services Manager may prescribe.  11 

F. An applicant for a refund shall be entitled to a hearing on such application before 12 
the Financial Services Manager if so requested in the application. 13 

G. If no hearing is requested by the applicant,upon receipt of an application,  the 14 
Financial Services Manager shall examine the same with all due speed and shall give 15 
written notice to the applicant of his or her decision thereon.   16 

H. If a hearing is requested by the applicant, upon receipt of an application,  the 17 
Financial Services Manager shall schedule and hold a hearing on the application. Hearing 18 
procedures shall be as described in Section 3-10-11.   19 

I. At the conclusion of the hearing, the Financial Services Manager shall give 20 
written notice to the applicant of his or her decision thereon.   21 

J. An applicant for a refund may appeal the decision of the Financial Services 22 
Manager to the district court as provided in Section 3-10-24.  23 

K. The right of any person to a refund under this Chapter is not assignable.  24 

3-10-18: DUTIES OF TAX ENFORCEMENT OFFICER:  25 

A. The Financial Services Manager may designate one or more tax enforcement 26 
officers, who will have the duty to assist the Financial Services Manager in the enforcement 27 
of this Chapter. 28 

B. A tax enforcement officer shall be supervised by the Financial Services Manager.  29 

C. A tax enforcement officer shall also have other duties as may be outlined in rules 30 
and regulations promulgated by the Financial Services Manager pursuant to Section 10-3-31 
28.  32 
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3-10-19:  RATE OF INTEREST; METHOD OF CALCULATION:  When interest is 1 
required or permitted to be charged under any provision of this Chapter, the annual rate 2 
of interest shall be calculated using the rate established by the state commissioner of 3 
banking pursuant to Section 39-21-110.5, C.R.S. For the purpose of calculating the amount 4 
of interest due, the date the return and tax were due shall be determined without regard to 5 
any extension of time for payment and shall be determined without regard to any notice of 6 
assessment and demand for payment issuedprior to the last date otherwise prescribed for 7 
such payment.  8 

3-10-20: RECOVERY OF UNPAID TAX BY ACTION AT LAW:  9 

A. In addition to other remedies provided in this Chapter, the Town may treat any 10 
taxes, penalties, or interest due to the Town under this Chapter but unpaid as a debt due to 11 
the Town from a non-paying Ski Area Operator. If suchSki Area Operator fails to pay the 12 
tax, or any portion thereof, or any penalty or interest thereon, when due, the Town may 13 
recover at law the amount of such taxes, penalties, and interest in any court of competent 14 
jurisdiction.The return filed by the Ski Area Operator or the notice of determination, 15 
assessment and demand for payment issued by the Financial Services Manager shall be 16 
prima facie proof of the amount due.  17 

B. The Town Attorney is authorized upon request by the Financial Services 18 
Manager to commence any legal action or suit for the recovery of the tax due to the Town 19 
under this Chapter. The defendantSki Area Operator shall be responsible for all costs, 20 
including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, incurred by the Town in any such action.  21 

3-10-21: INJUNCTIVE RELIEF: The Town may seek injunctive or other equitable relief 22 
in any court of competent jurisdiction to enforce the provisions of this Chapter.  23 

3-10-22: WAIVER OF PENALTIES, INTEREST, AND FEES:  For good cause shown the 24 
Financial Services Manager has the authority to waiveany penalty, interest, or fee imposed 25 
under this Chapter.  26 

3-10-23: AUTHORITY TO COMPROMISE TAXES:  The Financial Services Manager 27 
shall have the authority to compromise or enter into a payment plan with respect to any 28 
liability for taxes where the total amount of the liability does not exceed fifty thousand 29 
dollars ($50,000.00). Where the total amount of the liability is in excess of fifty thousand 30 
dollars ($50,000.00), any compromise or payment plan must be approved by the Town 31 
Council upon the recommendation of the Financial Services Manager. In any action 32 
involving the Town Council, the Ski Area Operator expressly waives the Ski Area 33 
Operator’s right to confidentiality.  34 

3-10-24: REVIEW OF DECISION OF FINANCIAL SERVICES MANAGER:  If a Ski 35 
Area Operator has exhausted all local remedies, the Ski Area Operator may apply for a 36 
review of any decision of the Financial Services Manager made pursuant to this Chapter. 37 
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Such appeal shall be filed in the Summit County District Court within thirty (30) days of 1 
the date of such decision, or the Ski Area Operator shall have waived its right to appeal. 2 

3-10-25: REVIEW BOND REQUIRED:  Within twenty (20) days after making application 3 
to the Summit County District Court for review of any decision of the Financial Services 4 
Manager, the appealing Ski Area Operator shall file with the Summit County District 5 
Court a surety bond in twice the amount of the taxes, penalties, interest and other charges 6 
stated in the final decision by the Financial Services Manager which are contested on 7 
appeal. The Ski Area Operator may, at the Ski Area Operator’s option, satisfy the surety 8 
bond requirement by a savings account or deposit in or a certificate of deposit issued by a 9 
state or national bank or by a state or federal savings and loan association, in accordance 10 
with the provisions of Section 11-35-101(1), C.R.S., equal to twice the amount of the taxes, 11 
penalties, interest, and other charges stated in the final decision by the Financial Services 12 
Manager. The Ski Area Operator may, at the Ski Area Operator’s option, deposit the 13 
disputed amount with the Financial Services Manager in lieu of posting a surety bond. If 14 
such amount is so deposited, no further interest shall accrue on the contested amount 15 
during the pendency of the action. At the conclusion of the action, after appeal or after the 16 
time for such appeal has expired, the funds deposited shall be, at the direction of the Court, 17 
either retained by the Financial Services Manager and applied against the amount due or 18 
returned in whole or in part with interest due to the Ski Area Operator from the date it 19 
was paid to the Financial Services Manager. No claim for refund of amounts deposited with 20 
the Financial Services Manager need be made by the Ski Area Operator in order for such 21 
amounts to be repaid in accordance with the direction of the court.  22 

3-10-26:  NOTICES:  All written notices required to be given to the Ski Area Operator 23 
under the provisions of this Chapter shall be personally delivered or mailed by first class 24 
mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the last known address of the Ski Area Operator on file 25 
with the Town.  26 
 27 
3-10-27: TAX IN ADDITION TO ALL OTHER TAXES: The tax imposed by this Chapter 28 
shall be in addition to all other taxes imposed by law.  29 

3-10-28: ADMINISTRATION BY FINANCIAL SERVICES MANAGER; RULES AND 30 
REGULATIONS:  The administration of all provisions of this Chapter is vested in and 31 
shall be exercised by the Financial Services Manager, who shall prescribe forms and 32 
formulate and promulgate reasonable rules and regulations in conformity with this 33 
Chapter for the making of returns, the ascertainment, assessment, and collection of taxes 34 
imposed, and the proper administration and enforcement thereof.  35 

3-10-29: LIMITATIONS ON ACTIONS TO COLLECT:  36 

A. Except as otherwise provided in this Section, no assessment shall be made, suit 37 
for collection instituted, or any other action to collect the same be commenced, more than 38 
three (3) years after the date on which the tax was due and payable.  39 
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B. In the case of a false return, fraudulent act, or failure to file a return, the tax, 1 
together with interest and penalties, may be assessed or proceedings for the collection of 2 
such taxes may be commenced at any time.  3 

C. Before the expiration of the applicable period of limitation, the affected Ski Area 4 
Operator and the Financial Services Manager may agree in writing to an extension thereof, 5 
and the period so agreed on may be extended by subsequent agreements in writing made 6 
before the expiration of the previously agreed upon extension. In the event that the Ski 7 
Area Operator refuses to extend the period of limitation, the Financial Services Manager 8 
may extend the period of limitation upon holding a hearing and finding good cause for the 9 
extension as a result of a delay caused by the Ski Area Operator.  10 

D. The period of limitation provided herein shall not run against the Town for an 11 
audit period if written notice is given to the Ski Area Operator prior to the expiration of 12 
the statute of limitations that the Ski Area Operator’s records will be audited pursuant to 13 
this Chapter. “Audit period” is the thirty six (36) month reporting period preceding the 14 
date of the notice of audit. 15 

3-10-30: VIOLATIONS; PENALTIES:  16 

A. It is unlawful and a misdemeanor offense for the Ski Area Operator to fail or 17 
refuse to collect the tax levied by this Chapter, regardless of whether the tax liability is 18 
disputed or an exemption is claimed.  19 

B. It is unlawful and a misdemeanor offense for any purchaser of a taxable lift ticket 20 
to fail or refuse to pay any the taxlevied by this Chapter, regardless of whether the tax 21 
liability is disputed or an exemption is claimed.  22 

C. It is unlawful and a misdemeanor offense for a Ski Area Operator tofail or refuse 23 
to remit to the Financial Services Manager the full amount required by the provisions of 24 
this Chapter, including taxes, penalties, and interest, as and when due pursuant to this 25 
Chapter. 26 

D. It is unlawful and a misdemeanor offense for a Ski Area Operator to fail or 27 
refuse to make or to file any tax return required to be made or filed by this Chapter as and 28 
when due pursuant to this Chapter, or to make any false or fraudulent return or any false 29 
or fraudulent statement in any such return.  30 

E. It is unlawful and a misdemeanor offense for any person to violate any other 31 
provision of this Chapter.  32 

F. Any person convicted of a violation described in this Section shall be punished as 33 
provided in Chapter 4 of Title 1 of this Code. 34 
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3-10-31: AMENDMENTS: This Chapter may be altered, amended, or repealed from time 1 
to time in the manner provided by law. 2 

Section 2.  Title 3 of the Breckenridge Town Code is amended by the addition of a 3 
new Chapter 11, entitled “Parking and Transportation Fund,” which shall read in its entirety as 4 
follows: 5 

CHAPTER 11 6 
 7 
 PARKING AND TRANSPORTATION FUND 8 
 9 
SECTION: 10 

 11 
3-11-1:  Definitions 12 
3-11-2:  Parking and Transportation Fund 13 
3-11-3:  Use of Designated Revenues 14 
3-11-4:  Amendments 15 

 16 
3-11-1:  DEFINITIONS:  As used in this Chapter the following words shall have the 17 
following meanings: 18 
 19 
 DESIGNATED REVENUES:   All revenues collected by the Town from 

the Lift Ticket Tax adopted by Chapter 10 
of Title 3 of this Code.  

 20 
3-11-2: PARKING AND TRANSPORTATION FUND:  There is hereby established a 21 
special fund of the Town to be known as the Town of Breckenridge Parking and 22 
Transportation Fund. Immediately upon receipt or collection, the designated revenuesshall 23 
be credited to the Parking and Transportation Fund.  The monies in the Parking and 24 
Transportation Fund shall be expended by the Town Council only for those 25 
purposesauthorized in Section 3-11-3. The amounts expended from the Parking and 26 
Transportation Fund shall be determined from time to time by the Town Council. 27 
 28 
3-11-3:  USE OF DESIGNATED REVENUES: The designated revenues shall be used only by 29 
the Town to pay or reimburse the Town for:  30 

A. The direct and indirect costs of operating the Town’s transit system, including, 31 
without limitation, labor, rolling stock, and other costs associated therewith;  32 

B. The direct and indirect costs of providing public parking within the Town, 33 
including, without limitation, land acquisition costs, construction, and maintenance; and 34 

C. Other direct and indirect costs incurred by the Town in enhancing the movement 35 
of persons and vehicles within the Town, including, without limitation, the cost of 36 
constructing and maintaining crosswalks and roundabouts. 37 
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3-11-3: AMENDMENTS: This Chapter may be altered, amended, or repealed from time to 1 
time in the manner provided by law. 2 

Section 3.  Except as specifically amended hereby, the BreckenridgeTownCode, and the 3 
various secondary codes adopted by reference therein, shall continue in full force and effect. 4 

Section 4.  The Town Council hereby finds, determines and declares that it has the power 5 
to adopt this ordinance pursuant to: (i) Section 12.1 of the Breckenridge Town Charter; (ii)the 6 
authority granted to home rule municipalities by Article XX of the Colorado Constitution; and 7 
(iii) Section 31-15-501(1)(c) C.R.S. 8 

Section 5.  This ordinance shall be published as provided by Section 5.9 of the 9 
Breckenridge Town Charter, and shall become effective July 1, 2016. 10 

 INTRODUCED, READ ON FIRST READING, APPROVED AND ORDERED 11 
PUBLISHED IN FULL this ____ day of _____, 2016.  A Public Hearing shall be held at the 12 
regular meeting of the Town Council of the Town of Breckenridge, Colorado on the ___ day of 13 
____, 2016, at 7:30 P.M., or as soon thereafter as possible in the Municipal Building of the 14 
Town. 15 
 16 

TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE, a Colorado 17 
     municipal corporation 18 
 19 
 20 
     By______________________________ 21 
          John G. Warner, Mayor 22 
 23 
ATTEST: 24 
 25 
 26 
_________________________ 27 
Helen Cospolich  28 
Town Clerk 29 
 30 
 31 
 32 
 33 
 34 
 35 
 36 
 37 
 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 
 43 
400-13\Lift Ticket Tax Ordinance (02-12-16) 44 
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MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Town Council 
 
From: Peter Grosshuesch, Director of Community Development 
 
Date: February 17, 2016 
 
Re: Planning Commission Decisions of the February 16, 2016, Meeting. 
 
DECISIONS FROM THE PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA OF February 16, 2016: 
 
CLASS C APPLICATIONS: 
1) Village at Breckenridge Plaza Renovation (CL) PL-2016-0007; 655 South Park Avenue 
Modify the existing pedestrian plaza to correct water leakage issues and create gathering spaces and a 
more pedestrian-friendly space. Approved. 
 
2) Hester Fence Variance (CK) PL-2016-0014; 432 Golden Age Drive 
Request for a variance to obtain approval for a 100 foot long fence to prevent snowdrift onto property. 
Denied. 
 
CLASS B APPLICATIONS: None. 
 
CLASS A APPLICATIONS: None. 
 
TOWN PROJECT HEARINGS: None. 
 
OTHER: None. 
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PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm 
 
ROLL CALL 
Kate Christopher Ron Schuman Dan Schroder 
Jim Lamb Gretchen Dudney Christie Mathews-Leidal 
Dave Pringle 
Wendy Wolfe, Town Council Liaison 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Ms. Leidal: On page 6, in regard to the Marvel house, Mr. Mosher added Condition 26 on the floor that was 
overlooked in the minutes. The minutes should read under staff recommendations at the end of the sentence: 
“with the addition of the new Condition 26 regarding a landscape covenant presented during the meeting by 
Mr. Mosher.” With no other changes, the February 2, 2016, Planning Commission Minutes were approved as 
presented. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Ms. Puester noted a change to move the Town Council Report to first on the agenda. With no other changes, 
the February 16, 2016, Planning Commission Agenda was approved as presented. 
 
TOWN COUNCIL REPORT: 
Ms. Wolfe: 

• Thanks to Kate Christopher for working on the Planning Commission over the past several years; 
thank you to the service for the Town. We will miss you. We discussed replacing your position and 
that it had been a very short time since the last interviews. We had a lot of candidates from the last 
round, so we will look back to the list to find a replacement. The Council had some questions of staff 
to get some clarifications on candidate status, but the plan is to go back to the list to find a candidate 
if possible. 

• Discussed the process to bring Pinewood 2 online (45 units of workforce housing). It will be done by 
this summer. Corum came to present on some logistics. Council approved this housing to allow pets, 
even though it wasn’t Corum’s recommendation. We hope to set some rules and are looking forward 
to making it a pet friendly unit. It will be 45 units of studios and one bedrooms. Targeting lower 
income; 50% AMI is the target, so the studio rental rate should be around $800/mo and a one 
bedroom should be under $1,000. Reservations will start to be taken around March 1. 

• We had a primer on Parking and Transit from DTJ and Nelson/Nygaard before the public community 
forum this Thursday. We have a 7:30am session and a 5:00pm sesssion at the Community Center this 
Thursday. From the preview we heard, I look forward to some good conversations. The consultants 
have information on how we can have a much more pedestrian friendly town, such as improving dark 
spots at night. There is some low hanging fruit to fix things and bring our congestion level to be more 
walkable. We aren’t just focusing on a single solution; there are many things we can do to improve 
our existing conditions. (Mr. Pringle: Is Council prepared to change its position on “dark skies”? I 
think this sacrifices a lot of street lights and lighting in the past, but I’m concerned about health safety 
and welfare.) This was talked about but that there are some technological improvements and better 
down lighting that may not sacrifice the up lighting goal. The consultants showed us a map of what 
our town looks like at night and it is surprising how there are some places in the center of Town that 
are dark. (Mr. Pringle: The recycling center could have had some better lighting for those people who 
recycle at night, but it was rejected.) The Council decided to take a wait and see position on it but it is 
stubbed out for potential future lighting around the Recycling Center. I would like to hear more 
people’s comments about this topic for the future. (Mr. Lamb: The pedestrian sidewalks that are 
heated are awesome.) (Ms. Christopher: I agree; I point these out to people who come to the Welcome 
Center.) (Mr. Schuman: How far outside the core did DTJ go?) They did discuss how the lodging is 
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located just outside the core and that there is a potential to improve lighting that could potentially 
prevent people from getting back in their car. Compared to other towns that DTJ has studied we could 
be in the more “walkable” category. (Mr. Pringle: I think that maintenance on the sidewalks that 
aren’t heated is critical. Also, Vail is a good example of encouraging people to park and then make it 
easy for people to take alternative transportation around town.) 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR: 
1) Village at Breckenridge Plaza Renovation (CL) PL-2016-0007, 535 South Park Avenue, (Liftside 

Condos, Peak Nine Inn, Lot 4), 555 South Park Avenue, (Plaza II, Shavano, Lot 3), 575 South Park 
Avenue, (Maggie Building, Lot 1, 645 South Park Avenue, (Plaza III, Wetterhorn Building, Lot 6), 655 
South Park Avenue, (Plaza I, Antero Building, Lot 5), 405 Village Road, (Chateaux Condominium Hotel, 
Lot 12) (Note: These are the correct addresses as noted in the Staff Report.) 
 

Commissioner Questions / Comments: 
Mr. Pringle: I would like to look at this a little more because there are some significant changes. (Ms. 

Puester: Would you like an overview?) 
 
Mr. Schuman made a motion to call up the Village at Breckenridge Plaza Renovation, PL-2016-0007, for an 
overview presentation. Mr. Pringle seconded, and the motion was carried unanimously (7-0). 
 
Mr. Chapin La Chance, Planner II for the Town of Breckenridge: The goal of this project is to improve some 
water leakage issues. The existing concrete will be removed and replaced with pavers; in addition the plan is 
to remove the gazebo, fire-pit and the planters. New metal railings and 6 new light posts are proposed. A new 
more energy efficient snow melt system will be installed. The existing concrete is visibly deteriorating and 
the planters and concrete are leaking into the parking garage below the plaza. Currently a 20’ utility and 
access easement runs through the plaza, with a 55.5’ radius in the approximate center of the existing plaza. 
100% of this existing site is impermeable surface, perhaps except for the planters. The proposal is to install 3 
outdoor firepits; one will be replacing an existing firepit in the existing gazebo. Staff is recommending 
negative two (-2) points under Policy 33/R for two new firepits. Also proposed is to replace the boiler plants 
with new energy efficient plants that are 23-26% more efficient, so we recommended positive two (+2) points 
under Policy 33/R, Other Design Features. Access and Circulation: primary access from downtown F Lot and 
to and from Peak 9 Quicksilver lift and ground surface of easements will both be improved. The existing 
planters encroach on the easement, so removing these planters will likely improve circulation but staff does 
not believe the conditions are changing enough to warrant positive points. Landscaping: 12 trees in 3,500 sq. 
ft. of multiple planters exist; the applicant has transplanted 7 other trees to a nearby location last year. Since 
the plaza is on top of a parking deck, and there have been numerous water leaks that could lead to structural 
problems. The plaza is internal to the site so no negative points are recommended. No concerns on 
architectural compatibility. Staff believes that this is harmonious. There are currently legal non-conforming 
light fixtures that exist but they don’t need to be replaced until 2022, and staff is recommending the applicant 
consider replacing these now as they will be required to be replaced in 6 years. The new fixtures that are 
proposed are LED, down cast, fully shielded. Drainage is the big issue; there is currently a sheet flow that 
flows eastward towards Blue River, and one of the design intents is to compartmentalize the drainage to 
reduce the water issues. New drains and new piping are proposed that will tie into the garage. Staff has no 
issues with this. Overall point analysis: negative two (-2) points for Policy 33/R and positive two (+2) points 
for Policy 33/R, so Staff recommended a passing policy with zero (0) points. All Absolute Policies are being 
met. 
 
Commissioner Questions / Comments: 
Mr. Schuman: Does the policy that the lighting must be fixed by 2022 apply? (Ms. Puester: It will be 

required to be replaced in 2022, so our suggestion was to point out that this may be more 
financially viable to address the lighting now while the plaza was torn up.) 
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Ms. Dudney: The planters will be removed, but no more planters, right? (Mr. LaChance: The applicant 
will speak to this, but there is a proposal for movable planters not tied into the concrete.) 
(Ms. Puester: I want to point out to you where the existing planters are currently on the 
plan.) 

Mr. Schroder: It read like the planters might be part of the drainage issue; are they causing the problem 
draining into the garage? (Mr. Nathan Nosari, General Manager, Village at Breckenridge 
HOA and Mr. Ed Scutellaro, Village at Breckenridge HOA Plaza Committee Chairperson:  
We’ve had problems with the planters; the rubberized membrane throughout the plaza and 
planters is old and not working. The planters are contributing to the problem. We will have 
mobile planters that are a seating bench and a ski and bike rack. If we have activities on the 
plaza we can move these, and we believe that it will provide everything we want including 
aesthetics. We have a prototype picture for you. It should give us back our landscaping and 
be more waterproofing with a tub; more functional. The pavers will look good; if we have a 
leak in our tubing we can pull the paver area up and repair the problem. This will be a fully 
functional water proof on top with edge to edge snow melt up top and better traffic flow for 
pedestrians. The issue now is the snow melts below the pavers and then freezes. There will 
be concrete, membrane and the tubing and the drains.) Why are the planters movable? (Mr. 
Nosari: We are designing the plaza to be multi-functional as it is currently underutilized and 
worn. We are adding facilities for this to turn into a stage or be used for art events.) (Ms. 
Puester: The moveable planters only have perennials, but no trees at this point?) (Mr. 
Nosari: Not sure there could be a tree in them but will depend on the final design.) 

Ms. Leidal: How many of the moveable planters? (Mr. Nosari: We are still determining this, but likely 
around six. These are not part of the application.) Would you be willing to add these to the 
project? (Mr. Scutellaro: We are worried about budget and worried about getting this project 
done on time. If it doesn’t fit with our capital project, it will be planned for the future plans. 
The cost for these six planters as currently designed is $120,000.) (Mr. Nosari: We need this 
project done by November 2016, and we want these racks included in the project.) 

Ms. Dudney: I really appreciate the improvement of this public space and it is much needed. It will look 
so much better and we will all enjoy it. (Mr. Scutellaro: It is self serving because we need 
the garage to be improved. We want it to look good too. Also, there will be a compass rose 
made out of pavers to replace the Gazebo.) 

Mr. Pringle: Mr. LaChance, will there be any analysis for the landscaping being removed? (Mr. 
LaChance: I can speak to that.) (Ms. Puester: We dug through the files and didn’t see any 
points awarded to landscaping in the plaza area. The policy talks to negative points being 
applicable when it is not adequate from a public right of way, adjacent properties and other 
visual corridors. Because this is an internal plaza, and not along a public right of way or 
adjacent property we couldn’t find any precedence for awarding any points in terms of 
landscaping. We saw staff reports, but didn’t find any preexisting points awarded to the 
plaza either. That and since it was internal to the project, we didn’t have any concerns with 
the loss of trees.) 

Ms. Leidal: Did you find an approved landscape plan? (Ms. Puester: We didn’t find a formal approved 
landscape plan for the permit. Most of the staff reports on file through the years discussed 
the entirety of the master plan of this area which included the Bell Towner Mall and the 
Marriott (on the river); they primarily spoke to landscaping around the river, but not 
specifically this plaza. These plans dated back to 1978.) 

Mr. Pringle: I would be surprised if we didn’t have a landscape plan, because it was a significant project 
back then. (Ms. Puester: We did find a master plan but that landscaping shown didn’t tie 
landscaping to a site specific location, although there were trees depicted in the master plan.) 
Do we have an understanding / requirement for what they are proposing in terms of 
planters? (Ms. Puester: We didn’t include that as the applicant doesn’t want to set it in stone 
at this stage. If they want to present the planters as a Class D Minor, we would like to see 
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and encourage that.) 
Ms. Leidal: I have the same concerns as you with Absolute Policy 22 about replacing and maintaining 

trees in an approved plan, but we don’t have a formal plan. I read this policy over and over 
and would like to see something added to the policy with regard to replacing landscape. I 
would like to revise this landscape policy and discuss at the end of the meeting; there is a 
provision about maintaining landscape but it doesn’t talk about replacing the landscape 
which I would like to see in there. 

Mr. Pringle: This will be the first of many large plaza improvements and large development 
improvements; we need to have a solid policy going forward. 

Mr. Schuman: What is the thought on the fire pit on the east side over by the Maggie side, by Taddeo’s? 
(Mr. Nosari: We would like to bring some level of activity to Taddeo’s. We are trying to 
entice and it is a nice view of the river.) (Mr. Scutellaro: We’d like to improve the south end. 
We’d like to come back to the Planning Commission at the completion of this plan and 
propose the moveable planters and discuss the type of plants and ask you at that time for 
your approval. We want this to be a nice plaza.) 

 
Commissioner Final Comments: 
Ms. Dudney: I am very appreciative of this effort. When a project is being developed the developer 

benefits, but when you have a homeowners association spending dollars on a public space 
and to have them refurbish it at no expense to the taxpayer it is great. They are replacing a 
giant firepit that was underused and they are replacing them with 3 smaller, nicer firepits and 
they are getting negative points associated with it. 

Mr. Pringle: I agree that this is a great upgrade. I would like to push for a modification to the plan to 
include a landscape plan wit the new planters; I would like this to be a condition of approval. 
(Ms. Puester: Let’s ask the applicant if they would be agreeable for the landscape plan to be 
a condition of approval.) (Mr. Scutellaro: We do not have a problem with coming back to 
you at a later time with a landscape plan since we are planning on it anyway.) 

Mr. Lamb: I agree that this is a huge improvement over what is there; I’m not worried about the 
landscaping because I think the applicant wants this to look good. I like the idea of a 
portable planter which makes this space more flexible. (Mr. Nosari: The gazebo is being 
donated to the Breckenridge Nordic Center.) 

Mr. Schroder: This is repairing a water leakage that could be destructive to adjacent buildings and could be 
a major problem if not addressed. I appreciate this being called up. I’m ok with the point 
analysis for negative points and positive points, and I look forward to this increasing vitality 
in this area. I didn’t realize that the current planter boxes are an impediment, but I think this 
is a net zero. The lighting is not a concern; I think you will be focused on making it better. 
(Mr. Nosari: The light fixtures are the standard Town light that are LED and dimmable and 
also timed. There will be energy conservation tactics.) I support a passing score of zero (0) 
points and that there is a Condition for a landscape plan. 

Mr. Schuman: I think this is a great proposal; I don’t think we would typically see the removal of 12 trees 
and like the added condition. 

Ms. Leidal: I support staff’s analysis and I appreciate the applicant’s taking on the drainage issue. 
Thanks for offering to come back with your landscape plan. (Ms. Puester: Mr. Nosari, is 
there a chance to relocate the trees to other parts of the property?) (Mr. Nosari: We did 
relocate 6 of the healthiest trees, but the others weren’t salvageable. We did relocate some 
shrubs around the ski school and around the bus stop.) 

Ms. Puester: The new Condition will be “Condition 18: Applicant shall submit and obtain approval for a 
new Class D Minor permit for a new plaza landscape plan.” Staff can take this to the 
Planning Commission as a memo to keep the Commission aware. 

Mr. Pringle: I’m fine with it just getting staff approval. (Mr. Nosari: It is a priority for us.) 
Ms. Christopher: I concur with the other Commissioners that this is a great project and will add value to the 
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town. 
 
Mr. Pringle made a motion to approve the point analysis for the Village at Breckenridge Plaza remodel, PL-
2016-0007, 655 South Park Avenue, as presented by staff, showing a passing score of zero (0) points. Mr. 
Schuman seconded, and the motion was carried unanimously (7-0). 
 
Mr. Pringle made a motion to approve the Village at Breckenridge Plaza remodel, PL-2016-0007, 655 South 
Park Avenue, together with the presented Findings and Conditions and the additional Condition 18 that, prior 
to Certificate of Completion, the applicant provide a new landscape plan and get approval from the staff on 
that plan. Mr. Schuman seconded and the motion was carried unanimously (7-0). 
 
COMBINED HEARINGS: 
1) Hester Fence Variance (CK) PL-2016-0014, 432 Golden Age Drive 
Mr. Kulick presented an application to request a variance to obtain approval for a 100 foot long fence to 
prevent snowdrift onto their property. In the summer of 2013, the USFS cut a section of trees to the south of the 
property. It also appears that the adjacent lot to the west has done wildfire mitigation, removing trees adjacent to 
the property. The Hester Residence was approved in 2011 and completed in March 2014. The rear outdoor living 
area in the southwest corner of the disturbance envelope includes a sitting area, recessed hot tub and gas fireplace. 
Upon the completion of the residence, the owners began having issues with snow accumulation at the outdoor 
space. The applicants constructed a 100 foot long fence between their property and Lot 58 (47 Peabody Terrace) 
to the west. The fence is 80 feet from the Peabody Right of Way and approximately 7 feet from the west side 
property line between the two homes (shown with the green arrow).  The applicants constructed the fence without 
a development permit. They have stated that this is not a privacy fence and its intent is to avoid snow 
accumulation, large snow drifts and over hanging cornices that could result in a safety hazard to people using the 
outdoor space. 
 
Section 9-1-19-47 Absolute, Fences, Gates and Gateway Entrance Monuments, details restrictions and exceptions 
for fences. One of the exceptions is privacy fencing to screen hot tubs. Fences are to have an open character and a 
maximum solid to void ratio of one to three (1:3). Privacy fences around hot tubs and spas shall not exceed six 
feet (6’) in height and shall not exceed fifteen feet (15’) in total length. 
 
Variances may be granted if the applicant proves a physical hardship and the Commission finds ALL of the 
following: 

1) There are special circumstances or conditions applying to the land, buildings, topography, vegetation, 
or other matters on the subject lot which would substantially restrict the effectiveness of the 
development in question; provided, however, that such special circumstances or conditions are unique 
to the particular use of which the applicant desires a variance and do not apply generally to all uses. 

2) That such special circumstances were not created by the applicant. 
3) That the granting of the variance will be in general harmony with the purposes of this chapter, and 

will not be materially detrimental to the persons residing or working in the vicinity, to the adjacent 
property, to the neighborhood, or to the public welfare in general. 

4) The variance applied for does not depart from the provisions of this chapter any more than is 
required. 

 
Staff does not support the variance request based on Section 9-1-11 (D) not being met. Staff finds no reason 
to assign positive or negative points under any Relative policies of the Development Code. The application 
fails Policy 47 (Absolute) Fences, Gates and Gateway Entrance Monuments and does not meet the Criteria for 
Approval for a Variance under 9-1-11 of the Town Code. 
 
The Planning Department recommends denial of the Hester Fence Variance (PL-20106-0014) at Lot 57, 
Filing 10, Highlands at Breckenridge, 432 Golden Age Drive, with the presented Findings. 
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Commissioner Questions / Comments: 
Mr. Schuman: Would a temporary snow fence be allowed by the Town? (Mr. Kulick: I don’t think so.) I 

built one in Blue River for this same purpose. I wonder if a snow fence for a road would 
ever be allowed in town? 

Ms. Christopher: But if there are 15’ snowdrifts, would it really come down? (Mr. Kulick: The issue is the 
overall length and design.) (Ms. Puester: If it was for a road, it would be deemed as a public 
improvement, but I don’t recall this ever being a need before on roads in town or the 
highway.) 

 
Applicant Presentation: Mr. Jim and Ms. Vanessa Hester: 
Thanks for allowing us to have an opportunity to speak. I want to apologize for having the fence constructed 
without permission; this was our mistake and we just didn’t know as we are new to the area. I think Mr. 
Kulick and Ms. Puester’s report did a good job of describing what we are applying for but the real issue is 
safety. The winter of 2013-14, we had drifts that developed overhanging our hot tub and fire pit that were 
over 8-10’ high as shown in your packet; we weren’t living there during that season. This presented an 
obvious safety issue; if the snow came down on someone in the hot tub, it could bury them. The sole purpose 
of the fence is to prevent the obvious overhang. The fence is 40-50’ from our hot tub and our fire pit. To 
ensure that the wind that comes down from the mountain, and we want to make sure that we block the wind, 
the 100’ length was necessary to adequately address our safety concerns. Before we put in the fence we talked 
to a landscape architect to see if we could put in some landscaping, but the trees proposed were very costly 
and there was no assurance that it would fix the problem. We went with the fence, tried to go with something 
that was visibly appealing that was ok with the neighbors. We did integrate the fence with existing 
landscaping to make it more visibly appealing. There exists some heated pavement that contributes to the 
problem, so the snow wants to cornice over the heated area and over the hot tub. (Ms. Dudney: Could you 
explain the topography of the plan presented?) (The applicant described landscape and topography of this lot.) 
This has nothing to do with privacy, it has gaps between the rails; it is solely for safety. We discussed the 15’ 
allowance for a hot tub privacy fence. 15’ won’t get us the protection we need from the snow drifting. In your 
packet there is a picture on pages 43-44 that shows the overhang on the hot tub. You can see how the snow 
caved in and damaged the hot tub. (Mr. Ethan Guerra, Contractor who built the house: I’ve lived in 
Breckenridge for 30 years and I took the picture. The previous winter we had no issues. The next summer 
they did the clear cut and then the huge cornice drifting snow came in after the clear cutting of the trees. It 
was jaw dropping how much the snow drifted in. My guys didn’t want to clear it.) 
 
Commissioner Questions / Comments: 
Mr. Pringle: The code doesn’t allow this; are you the only homeowner that has this problem? (Mr. 

Hester: We are the only homeowner. I can’t use the spaces as designed and approved and I 
can’t have guests over to the home when I haven’t been there because of the safety concerns. 
I do have snow removal responsibilities here but not this.) 

Ms Christopher: It sounds to me like it is a result from the adjacent clear cutting? (Mr. Kulick: It could be but 
it could be the location and the design of the space.) (Mr. Guerra: It was a result of the clear 
cut; as this problem did not exist before the clear cut. I was dumbfounded by this. I do 
avalanche control work at Breckenridge for the ski patrol. It provided the fetch area.) 

Ms. Leidal: What direction is the clear cut? (Mr. Hester: It is to the south west of the property.) (Mr. 
Guerra: I’m a strong advocate for the fence, but my staff was afraid to climb in there and 
shovel the snow off. I don’t see snow like that.) (Mr. Hester: Since the fence has been up, 
the depth is no more than the natural depth of the snow, no more than about 3’.) 

 
Ms. Christopher opened the hearing to public comment. There was no public comment and the hearing was 
closed. 
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Commissioner Final: 
Ms. Dudney: I understand how different things are here as opposed to Texas, but we have a zoning code 

and our job is to enforce the zoning code. And when you have an absolute policy a variance 
is very hard to get. We have to think about the precedent that is set and can you meet the 
variance requirements. I think you can solve your problem with spruce trees for about $800 
a piece. I can’t agree with this variance; it is bad precedent. Even though it is dangerous, you 
don’t have to go out to the hot tub. You can put up the hot tub fence, move the hot tub or put 
up trees. 

Mr. Pringle: I concur with Ms. Dudney’s analysis. It is a bad precedent for us to grant this variance. 
Incidentally, in Kansas there are trees that are placed as a snow barrier all over the place. 

Mr. Lamb: I work for the forest service but I didn’t cut the trees. I appreciate you working with the staff 
and your neighbors. I think the spruce trees are a good idea but I think if we approve this we 
will have a precedent. I don’t think this is a special unique circumstance to this property; 
other people have this problem. 

Mr. Schroder: Maybe number 3 of 4 could be met but to grant a variance, it says that it has to be in 
harmony with the chapter. The condition was created by you and the design of your own 
property. The final condition of what the neighbor does is for you to deal with. We do feel 
badly for you. I’m not happy to see the cornice, but the code doesn’t allow me to say ok to 
the fence based the four variance criteria. 

Mr. Schuman: I too agree with the other Commissioners. And I do support the denial to the variance. 
Ms. Leidal: I agree with the other Commissioners, and the staff analysis. We live in a unique 

environment and are bound to deal with these types of issues. 
Ms. Dudney: We have a quasi judicial role; the importance is that we need to be consistent to the code. 

We try very hard not to have variances so that others can anticipate what is going to happen. 
I know that seems harsh right now but it provides a fair process for all. 

Mr. Lamb: We sympathize. 
Ms. Christopher: I have compassion; I know that it is hard to live at 10,000 feet.  I personally walk through 8’ 

of snow to access my home. That is something we have to live through, but we must live 
with the code. 

Mr. Pringle: Point of clarification, if we find for denial, does this mean that the fence must be removed 
immediately?  (Ms. Puester: We will work with the applicant on the removal date. That is 
where this all started when we sent a notice. We let them keep the fence up during the 
variance process so they wouldn’t be possibly taking it down and putting it back up if it was 
approved. The removal of the fence may be in the spring now with the snow. With the 
neighbors not complaining I think that is acceptable if this is denied.) 

 
Mr. Pringle made a motion to accept the point analysis showing no point assignment or zero points for the 
Hester Fence Variance, PL-2016-0014, 432 Golden Age Drive. Mr. Schroder seconded, and the motion was 
carried unanimously (7-0). 
 
Mr. Pringle made a motion to recommend denial of the Hester Fence Variance, PL-2016-0014, 432 Golden 
Age Drive, with the presented denial findings and failure of Absolute Policy 47. Mr. Schroder seconded, and 
the motion was carried unanimously (7-0). 
 
Mr. Hester: How will planting the spruce trees work with the defensible space requirements? (Ms. Puester: 
You can call me tomorrow and staff can work with you to discuss possible solutions using landscaping.) 
 
OTHER MATTERS: 
1) Election of Chair and Vice Chair for 2016 
Mr. Lamb made a motion to nominate Mr. Ron Schuman as Chair of the Planning Commission through 
October 31, 2016. Ms. Dudney seconded, and the motion was carried unanimously (7-0). (Mr. Pringle: Are 
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there Commissioners up in November? (Ms. Puester: Yes, there will be 3 up and if things change we could go 
through this again depending on who is appointed.) 
 
Ms. Dudney made a motion to nominate Mr. Schroder as Vice Chair of the Planning Commission. Mr. 
Pringle seconded, and the motion was carried unanimously (7-0). 
 
Village at Breckenridge Plaza Renovation Call Up:   
Ms. Leidal: I struggled with the Call Up because we work so hard to maintain landscaping and I don’t see 
anything in the code that discusses replacement of landscaping. Section E, 1. and 2., Policy 22A, it talks about 
landscaping in an originally approved plan. I think we should consider adding “replacing existing 
landscaping”. What if someone in the historic district wants to come down and cut down trees when they 
don’t have an approved plan? (Mr. Grosshuesch:  Why don’t you allow us to take a look at this? Anyone who 
is coming to us with a remodel or addition, we would be working with a plan and point analysis and if they 
were modifying a property with a modern-day plan it would earn negative or positive points. This one was an 
oddball plan because it was initially approved in 1978, but we didn’t have a real comparable code to what we 
have now.) (Ms. Puester: I found a point analysis from 1978 for a master plan for the entire area, but it didn’t 
have a landscape plan.) (Mr. Grosshuesch: The landscape policy and point analysis has changed since then, 
reconciling old plans with new point analysis during updates & remodels can be challenging. We will talk 
about it internally and come back to you.) 
 
Mr. Pringle: If points were awarded for landscaping but the landscaping goes away with new modern point 
analysis, how do we reconcile it? (Mr. Grosshuesch: Yes, I see your point. If someone came in wanting to put 
in parking with landscape this would be a problem.) (Ms. Puester: Yes, and Ms. Leidal makes a good point 
with the new defensible space requirement.) We should be ahead of the curve of this one. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:00pm. 
 
   
  Ron Schuman, Chair 
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MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Town Council 
 
FROM: Julia Puester, Senior Planner 
 
DATE: February 16, 2016 for Meeting of February 23, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Planning Commission Applicants 
 
 
Attached please find five letters of interest for the Planning Commission. There is one seat available on 
the Commission for Ms. Kate Christopher’s position that is vacating early. The completion of this term 
will run from March 1, 2016 to October 31, 2018. 
 
You previously saw these applications in December of 2015 for the replacement of Mr. Eric Mamula’s 
vacated position. Dylan O’Connell has been removed from the list since the December interviews as he 
did not return phone calls or email regarding his continued interest in the position. 
 
The applications are from the following people: 

• Bob Christie 
• Lee Edwards 
• Stephen C. Gerard II 
• Mike Giller  
• Patrick McFarlane 

 
Mr. Mike Giller has changed his voter status to the Town of Breckenridge since the last Town Council 
meeting. Staff has no concerns with the voter status of the five Planning Commission candidates. 
 
Should the Town Council decide to appoint one of the five candidates above, staff has provided the 
motion below. If none of the candidates are appointed this evening, staff will advertise for the vacant 
position. 
 
MOTION: 
I make a motion to appoint ____________ to the Town Planning Commission effective immediately. 
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Scheduled Meetings, Important Dates and Events 

Shading indicates Council attendance – others are optional 

The Council has been invited to the following meetings and events.  A quorum may be in attendance at any or all of 
them.  All Council Meetings are held in the Council Chambers, 150 Ski Hill Road, Breckenridge, unless otherwise 

noted. 

FEBRUARY 20165 

Thursday, February 18, 2016; BGVCC Parking and Transit Forums 

Friday, February 19, 2016; 8-9 am; Cabin Coffee Coffee Talk 

Tuesday, February 23, 2016; 3:00/7:30 pm Second Meeting of the Month 
 

MARCH 20165 

Tuesday, March 8, 2016; 3:00/7:30 pm First Meeting of the Month 

Friday, March 11, 2016; 8-9 am; TBD Coffee Talk 

Tuesday, March 22, 2016; 3:00/7:30 pm Second Meeting of the Month 

 

APRIL 20165 

Tuesday, April 5, 2016 Municipal Election Day 

Tuesday, April 12, 2016; 3:00/7:30 pm (May Be Rescheduled) First Meeting of the Month 

Friday, April 15, 2016; 8-9 am; TBD Coffee Talk 

Tuesday, April 26, 2016; 3:00/7:30 pm Second Meeting of the Month 

 

OTHER MEETINGS 
4th Monday of the Month; 4:00 p.m. Cultural Arts Advisory Committee; Riverwalk Center 

1st & 3rd Tuesday of the Month; 7:00 p.m. Planning Commission; Council Chambers 

1st Wednesday of the Month; 4:00 p.m. Public Art Commission; 3rd floor Conf Room 

2nd & 4th Tuesday of the Month; 1:30 p.m. Board of County Commissioners; County 

2nd Wednesday of the Month; 12:00 noon Breckenridge Heritage Alliance 

2nd & 4th Tuesday of the month; 2:00 p.m. Housing/Childcare Committee 

2nd Thursday of the Month; 5:30 p.m. Sanitation District 

3rd Monday of the Month; 5:30 p.m. BOSAC; 3rd floor Conf Room 

3rd Tuesday of the Month; 9:00 a.m. Liquor Licensing Authority; Council Chambers 

4th Wednesday of the Month; 9:00 a.m. Summit Combined Housing Authority  

4th Wednesday of the Month; 8:30 a.m. Breckenridge Tourism Office; BTO Offices 

4th Thursday of the Month; 7:00 a.m. Red White and Blue; Main Fire Station 

4th Monday of the Month; 3:00 p.m.                                                                                                                                                                Childcare Advisory Committee; Town Hall 

Other Meetings: CAST, CML, NWCCOG, RRR, QQ, I-70 Coalition, BEC 
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